1983

Claron D. Bailey v. Deseret Federal Savings And Loan Association : Brief of Appellant

STATEMENT OF CASE

Pursuant to a Complaint filed with a District Court, the Plaintiff-Respondent Claron D. Bailey sought monetary damages against the Defendant-Appellant Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association. The Plaintiff-Respondent alleged that he was entitled to damages by reason of Utah's Deed of Trust Statute, U.C.A. §§57-1-19, et. seq., (1953 as amended). The case was tried before a District Court.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

This matter was tried, without a jury, before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinser of the Third Judicial District Court, on the 1st and 2nd days of July, 1982. After the close of the evidence and the submitting of legal memoranda

by both parties, the Court entered its Memorandum Decision on July 30, 1982. On January 7, 1983, the Court entered its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment awarding to Plaintiff and against Defendant the total sum of Two Thousand Five Hundred Ninety-Five Dollars and Sixty-Six Cents (\$2,595.66).

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association seeks a reversal of the Judgment against it.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant-Appellant Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association (hereinafter referred to as "Deseret Federal") is a federally chartered savings and loan association with its principal place of business in Salt Lake City, Utah. (R.2.) On April 28, 1977, Deseret Federal recorded at the Salt Lake County Recorder's Office its Deed of Trust under which Mr. William S. Radmall, Jr. and Mrs. Ruth Radmall (hereinafter referred to as the "Radmall's"), as trustors, conveyed to Deseret Federal, as trustee and beneficiary, real property located in Salt Lake County (hereinafter referred to as the "Radmall's' real property") for the purposes of securing an obligation in the principal amount of \$45,200.00. (R.2-3 and Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 3.)

Subsequent to Deseret Federal's recording of its Deed of Trust, the Plaintiff-Respondent Claron D. Bailey (hereinafter referred to as "Bailey") recorded his Notice of Lien on the subject real property because he apparently had not been paid for dry wall materials supplied to said property. Further, the Radmalls, as trustors, conveyed a second Deed of Trust on the subject real property to Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, as trustee, and Ivoy and Company, as beneficiary, for the purposes of securing an obligation in the amount of \$4,545.00. Said beneficial interest was later assigned to Bailey. (R.3 and Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 6.) Thus, as a result of the above described transactions, Deseret Federal held a secured first lien on the Radmall property and Bailey had a secured second lien on the same property. (R.123-125.)

In February of 1978, the Radmalls defaulted in their obligation secured by Deseret Federal's Deed of Trust. Thus, Deseret Federal recorded on August 18, 1978, at the Office of the Salt Lake County Recorder, its Notice of Default and Election to Sell. (R.3 and Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 9.) However, before Deseret Federal could conduct its trustee's sale on the subject property, the Radmalls filed a Voluntary Petition in Bankruptcy, Case No. 78-01047, in the U.S. District Court of Utah, on October 24, 1978. (R.3 and 29.)

With the filing of the Bankruptcy Petition, Deseret Federal pursued its remedies in Bankruptcy Court. On May 9,

1979, a Complaint in Reclamation was filed by Deseret Federal in Bankruptcy Court seeking an order of that Court to allow Deseret Federal to proceed with its trustee's sale of the Radmalls' property. (R.29-39.) A trial on Deseret Federal's Complaint in Reclamation was held on August 13, 1979. At the trial, the Bankruptcy Court entered an Order and Judgment which read in pertinent part as follows:

That the relief sought in the Complaint by Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association is granted and said Association may proceed to Trustee's sale on the real property described in the Complaint herein pursuant to the laws of the State of Utah. In the event that Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association should be the successful bidder at the Trustee's sale, and shall acquire title to part or all of the real property herein, free of other liens, then the property so acquired shall be offered for sale by the Association in a commercially reasonable manner and in the event that the sum in excess of that necessary to fully satisfy the note, trust deed, interest, costs and attorney's fees is realized upon sale, such excess shall be paid over to the Court for further disposition. (R.40-41.)

Pursuant to the above quoted Order of the Bankruptcy Court, Deseret Federal scheduled its trustee's sale on the Radmalls' property for November 9, 1979, at 10:00 a.m. The sale was conducted at that time, and Deseret Federal made the only bid in the amount of \$48,974.14, that figure representing the entire amount due and owing to it. (R.122-123 and Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 6.)

Just prior to the above described trustee's sale, Bailey filed a Verified Complaint in Bankruptcy Court against Deseret Federal seeking the following forms of relief:

1. A Declaratory Judgment having Deseret Federal's Deed of Trust on the Radmalls' property declared void;

2. A Declaratory Judgment ordering Deseret Federal to allow Bailey to bring Radmalls' default obligation current once the Court had determined the amount necessary to bring said obligation current;

3. An Order requiring the Bankruptcy Trustee to abandon the Radmalls' property;

4. An Order enjoining Deseret Federal's trustee's sale on the Radmalls' property; and

5. A Judgment against Deseret Federal for wrongfully disbursing funds in connection with the Radmalls' obligation. (R.43-53.)

In response to Bailey's Verified Complaint, Deseret Federal filed with the Bankruptcy Court its Motion to Dismiss the Verified Complaint upon the grounds that it failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. (R.54.) A hearing was held on Deseret Federal's Motion on November 13, 1979. The Bankruptcy Court, after hearing argument, granted Deseret Federal's Motion. (R.55.)

Approximately one week after the Bankruptcy Court dismissed Bailey's Verified Complaint, Bailey filed a Complaint with the Third Judicial District Court against Deseret Federal. That Complaint sought the following forms of relief:

1. A Declaratory Judgment seeking to void Deseret Federal's Deed of Trust on the Radmalls' property and pay

the proceeds of the trustee's sale in such order as the Court shall determine;

2. An Order requiring Deseret Federal to pay the proceeds of the trustee's sale in such an order as the Court shall determine;

3. A Judgment against Deseret Federal for wrongfully disbursing funds in connection with the Radmalls' obligation; and

4. A Judgment against Deseret Federal for Bailey's damages on the basis of strict liability. (R.2-5.)

Deseret Federal filed an Answer to Bailey's Complaint. (R.9-10.) Thereafter, Deseret Federal filed its Motion for Summary Judgment. The thrust of the Motion for Summary Judgment was that the Bankruptcy Court's dismissal of Bailey's Verified Complaint was res judicata upon the filing of his Complaint in District Court. (R.17-23.) In support of Deseret Federal's Motion for Summary Judgment, it relied upon a series of certified documents from Bankruptcy Court. (R.25-55.) In opposition to Deseret Federal's Motion, Bailey relied upon an affidavit of his own attorney. (R.62-65.) On March 19, 1981, the Honorable James Sawaya, one of the judges of the Third Judicial District Court, heard Deseret Federal's Motion. After taking the matter under advisement, the Court ruled that the Bankruptcy Court's dismissal was not res judicata upon Bailey and, thus, denied Deseret Federal's Motion. (R.67-69.)

The matter was tried before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson, one of the judges of the Third Judicial District Court, sitting without jury, on July 1 and 2, 1982. (R. 89-91.) The Court entered into Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment on January 7, 1983. (R. 115-116 and 122-125.) On January 18, 1983, Deseret Federal filed its Notice of Appeal. (R.133-134.)

ARGUMENT

POINT I: THE BANKRUPTCY COURT'S DISMISSAL OF RESPONDENT'S VERIFIED COMPLAINT IS RES JUDICATA UPON THE RESPONDENT FILING THE COMPLAINT IN DISTRICT COURT.

Deseret Federal has maintained through the litigation that Bailey's Complaint filed in State Court was barred by reason of the doctrine of res judicata. This Court's leading case on the doctrine is Krofcheck v. Downey State Bank, 580 P. 2d 243 (Utah, 1978). In that case, this Court held:

The doctrine of res judicata will bar a subsequent action if the following requirements are met: (1) the two cases must be between the same parties or their privies; (2) there must have been a final judgment on the merits of the prior case; and (3) the prior adjudication must have involved the same issue or an issue that could or should have been raised therein. (580 P. 2d at 249.)

When applying this three point test to facts presently before the Court, it is apparent that the District Court erred when it failed to grant Deseret Federal's Motion for Summary Judgment.

First, it is not disputed that both the Verified Complaint filed with the Bankruptcy Court and the Complaint filed with the District Court involve the same parties. Bailey is the Plaintiff in both actions. Deseret Federal is the Defendant in both actions.

Second, there was a final determination on the merits in the prior case. After the Verified Complaint had been filed with the Bankruptcy Court, Deseret Federal made a Motion to Dismiss pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The Bankruptcy Court granted the motion and ordered a dismissal of the Verified Complaint. Such a dismissal is a final adjudication upon the merits. Rule 41(b), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Third, the dismissal of Verified Complaint by the Bankruptcy Court involved the same issues that were raised again by Bailey before the District Court. When both Complaints are compared, their similarities are striking. The gravamen of both Complaints is that Deseret Federal had violated U.C.A. §§57-1-19, et. seq. (1953 as amended), and, therefore, Bailey was entitled to one of a series of alternative reliefs. Had a court granted Bailey any of the relief he sought in either complaint, the result would have been the same; Deseret Federal would have to pay money to Bailey because of Deseret Federal's secured position with respect to Radmalls' real property.

Not one relevant factual circumstance had changed from the date the Bankruptcy Court dismissed the Verified

Complaint to the date Failey filed his Complaint with the District Court. Bailey was using the same facts in both actions to challenge the validity of Deseret Federal's secured obligation. Bailey was using similar facts in both actions to challenge Deseret Federal's conducting of the trustee's sale.

Finally, a review of the District Court's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law reveals that virtually every issue addressed by the District Court in its final determination was either directly or implicitly raised by Bailey in his Verified Complaint before the Bankruptcy Court. In so doing, the District Court refused to grant any import to the Bankruptcy Court's dismissal with prejudice of Bailey's prior Complaint.

It has long been established that the normal rules of res judicata apply to the decisions of a Bankruptcy Court. Chicot County Drainage District v. Baxter State Bank, 308 U.S. 371, 60 S. Ct. 317 (1940). Additionally, a state court's recognition of the finality of a decision of a bankruptcy court is a matter of comity. It is certainly not in the best interest of the State of Utah to have the bankruptcy courts relitigate matters that our courts have already decided. Since the Bankruptcy Court's dismissal of the Verified Complaint was final and on the merits and since the Verified Complaint involved the same issue or issues that could have been raised in Bankruptcy Court, the District Court erred when it denied Deseret Federal's Motion for Summary Judgment.

Article I, Section 8 of the United States Constitution grants to Congress the power to establish "uniform laws on the subject of bankruptcies throughout the United States." This was Congress' anticipated bankruptcy courts to preempt any state subject matter jurisdiction in the area of bankruptcy. By adopting the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978 (11 U.S.C. §§111 et. seq.), Congress granted to the U.S. Bankruptcy Courts broad subject matter jurisdiction over matters which, prior to the Act, had been within the exclusive jurisdiction of the U.S. District Courts or state courts of general jurisdiction.* It has been Counsel Federal's position, throughout the litigation on this matter, that the Bankruptcy Court has exclusive subject matter jurisdiction over any proceeds of the trustee's sale of the Radwalle's property. This position is based upon the jurisdiction grants contained in the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978 which amended Title 11 of the U.S. Code.

The basis of Bankruptcy Court jurisdiction is 11 U.S.C. §111. That section reads in pertinent part:

*The United States Supreme Court has recently raised constitutional questions concerning Congress's broad grant of jurisdiction to the Bankruptcy Courts. However, the effect of said ruling was stayed until December 31, 1981. See Northern Pipeline Construction Co. v. Marathon Pipe Line Co., 102 S. Ct. 1335 (1981). Thus, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court had all its jurisdictional powers during the relevant times involved in this matter.

(e) The bankruptcy court in which a case under Title 11 is commenced shall have exclusive jurisdiction of all of the property, wherever located, of the debtor, as of the commencement of such case.

Commenting on the above, Collier on Bankruptcy states: "Thus section 1471(e) grants to the Bankruptcy Court the broadest jurisdiction possible over the property of the debtor." 1 Collier on Bankruptcy ¶3.01(g) at 3-56 (15th Ed. 1983).

Because of Section 1471(e), it has not been in dispute between the parties that the moment the Radmalls filed their Petition for Voluntary Bankruptcy the real property in which both Deseret Federal and Bailey claimed a secured interest was within the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court. Deseret Federal recognized this jurisdiction when it filed its Complaint of Reclamation with the Bankruptcy Court. Bailey recognized the jurisdiction when he filed his Verified Complaint. What Deseret Federal maintained in District Court, and now maintains on appeal, is that the Bankruptcy Court's exclusive jurisdiction is not only over the Radmall's real property but also over any proceeds which may result by reason of a foreclosure sale of that real property. Deseret Federal's position in this regard is not only in keeping with the broad wording of Section 1471(e), but is also consistent with complimentary sections of the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978 and legal interpretations of that Act.

Congress granted to the Bankruptcy Court certain discretion to refuse jurisdiction over some subject matters.

This discretionary jurisdiction is defined in 28 U.S.C. §1471(d). However, 28 U.S.C. §1471(e) was excluded from those matters over which the Bankruptcy Court can exercise such discretion. Norton Bankruptcy Law and Practice comments on the relationship between §1471(d) and §1471(e) as follows:

. . . it should be noted that there is no authority under this section [1471(d)] to abstain from an entire bankruptcy case, or to abstain from the exercise of exclusive jurisdiction over property. In this latter context, however, there is no apparent intent to reverse prior law under which a bankruptcy court could permit state foreclosure proceeding to continue in appropriate cases. Such a result should occur by granting relief from the automatic stay, rather than by way of abstention under this section [1471(d)]. 1 Norton Bankruptcy Law and Practice, §5.09 at 12 (1981).

The automatic stay, which is referred to above and which would have to be terminated in order for a state court to assume jurisdiction over the debtor's property, is the result of 11 U.S.C. §362(a). Generally, upon the filing of a petition in bankruptcy, all creditors are enjoined by that section from proceeding against a debtor or the debtor's property. However, a creditor is not without remedy. In an appropriate situation, a creditor may under 11 U.S.C. §362(d) seek to have the automatic stay either terminated, annulled, modified, or conditioned.

Deseret Federal did seek such relief from the automatic stay in the Radmalls' bankruptcy when it filed its Complaint in Reclamation with the Bankruptcy Court. However, the Bankruptcy Court did not terminate the automatic stay as it affected the Radmalls' property; instead the Bankruptcy

Court modified the automatic stay to allow Deseret Federal to proceed with a non-judicial foreclosure of the real property, and should said sale or resale by Deseret Federal result in excess proceeds above Deseret Federal's lien, those proceeds would be paid into the Bankruptcy Court. (R.40-41.)

A modified lifting of the automatic stay by a Bankruptcy Court so that it may retain control over the proceeds of a trustee's sale is certainly consistent with that Court's exclusive jurisdiction over property of the debtor. In the matter now before this Court, there were numerous secured claims against the Radmalls' real property. Deseret Federal alleged that it held the largest and the first priority over all secured claims. Bailey, in his Complaint in District Court, alleged that he held three separate claims on the property and that they were superior in interest to that of Deseret Federal. If a Bankruptcy Court is to fulfill its responsibility to maximize the value of a debtor's estate, it must retain jurisdiction over the various claims against property of that estate. One Bankruptcy Court commented on this as follows:

It is clear that the Bankruptcy Court is the exclusive forum for a determination of the rights of adverse interests in property of the debtor. In re Bellucci, 9 B.R. 887, 888 (1981).

Therefore, it is consistent with the Reform Bankruptcy Act of 1978 and the September 28, 1979 Order of the Bankruptcy Court that jurisdiction over any dispute regarding proceeds of a sale of the Radmalls' real property was retained by the

Bankruptcy Court when Bailey filed his Complaint in the District Court.

Even if it could be assumed that Bankruptcy Court did not have exclusive jurisdiction over the proceeds of the trustee's sale, surely the Bankruptcy Court had concurrent jurisdiction with the District Court. American Jurisprudence states the general law of concurrent jurisdiction as follows:

As a general rule the exercise of concurrent jurisdiction is controlled by the principle of priority. According to this principle the court of concurrent jurisdiction that first exercises it thereby acquires exclusive jurisdiction to further proceed in the case. In other words, once a court of concurrent jurisdiction has begun to exercise its jurisdiction over a case its authority to deal with the action is, subject to appellate review, exclusive until it is completely disposed of, and no other court of concurrent jurisdiction may interfere with the proceedings thus pending. (20 Am. Jur. 2d, Courts §128, p. 481.)

Because of the Radmalls' bankruptcy, the Bankruptcy Court's Order of September 28, 1979, and the filing of the Verified Complaint by Bailey in Bankruptcy Court, the Bankruptcy Court first assumed jurisdiction over the Radmalls' real property or any proceeds which that property may generate.

This Court in Upton v. Heiselt Construction Company, 280 P. 2d 971 (Utah, 1955), adopted the following view on concurrent jurisdiction:

. . . two identical actions between the same parties cannot co-exist in different courts generally is true, there is an established exception thereto, where such actions are initiated first in one state then in another, or in a state court then in a federal court or vice versa, in which cases it is held generally that although the first action filed should be pursued to finality, such identical actions can co-exist in

different states, or in a state and federal court, provided, however, that a judgment in one may be pleaded in bar or in abatement to the other . . . (280 P. 2d 971, 973-974.)

In this matter, the first action was filed in a federal court by Bailey. It was pursued to finality, a dismissal with prejudice. Bailey did not appeal that dismissal which was his right. Instead, one week later, Bailey filed a similar Complaint in District Court. The District Court then refused to recognize the final determination of the Bankruptcy Court and bar Bailey's Complaint.

CONCLUSION

Deseret Federal's borrowers, the Radmalls, had defaulted on their loan. To remedy this situation, Deseret Federal began the process for a non-judicial foreclosure of the Radmalls' real property. However, before the situation had been remedied, the Radmalls filed bankruptcy. Deseret Federal then pursued its remedies in Bankruptcy Court. As a result of a specific order of the Bankruptcy Court, Deseret Federal conducted a trustee's sale. At that sale, Deseret Federal made the only bid and bid what was due and owing on its note. No money resulted from the sale.

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