1983

## **Claron D. Bailey v. Deseret Federal Savings And Loan Association : Brief of Respondent**

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

NONE

Relief Sought Against Bank  
In Its Position as Trustee

Relief Granted Against Bank  
In Its Position as Trustee

4. For an Order enjoining the sale by the defendant and its attorney scheduled for November 9, 1979 at 10:00 a.m.

[For an Order] to pay to the plaintiff and the other party entitled to the proceeds of Trustee's Sale such amounts and in such priority as the court shall determine.

It is clear from the comparison above, that the court based its award only upon that which was new and unique to the state court complaint. The court's memorandum decision provides in pertinent as follows:

The Court further finds that when the Bankruptcy Court refused to take jurisdiction over the excess funds, if there be any, then the State Court could proceed pursuant to §57-1-29 to adjudicate the priority and the rights to the proceeds of the trustee's sale.

That the plaintiff did take an assignment of a trust deed from Ellis R. Ivory, successor in interest to Ivory, Inc. formerly known as Ivory Company, a Utah corporation and stands in their position as far a priority is concerned. That the note and trust deed provides for 9% interest and that the defendant in the foreclosure proceedings did charge interest at the rate of 10% from the date the note was declared due and payable. This was agreed to in the construction agreement but was not in the security agreements and the Court finds it was an improper charge at the trustee sale. The Court also finds that the attorney's fees were excessive, that a proper attorney fee would be the amount of \$3,000.00 and \$200.00 costs.

Based on the foregoing, the Court awards judgment to the plaintiff in the sum of \$650.67 and \$300.00 as amounts received at the trustee sale over and above what the beneficiary is entitled to. (R. 113-114)

Later the court amended its decision, and awarded Mr. Bailey an additional \$1,081.91 for foreclosure attorney's fees bid at sale but not actually paid by the bank. (R. 125, paragraph 10)

The case cited by the Bank, Krofcheck v. Downey State Bank, 580 P.2d 243 (Utah, 1978) lists three criteria which must be met before a cause of action is barred by the doctrine of res judicata: Identity of parties, identity of claims and disposal of those claims on the merits. Let us examine these points separately.

(1) The two cases must be between the same parties or their privies.

Though one of the named plaintiffs and one of the named defendants in the bankruptcy suit are the plaintiff and defendant in this case, their positions and capacities are different.

Mr. Bailey sued in bankruptcy court as a third position mechanic's lien holder and as a sixth position purchaser of the bankrupts' equity in the property. (R. 003) In the state court action, Mr. Bailey was granted relief as the assignee of the position of Ivory and Co. (R. 122) In Conway v. Mosher 103 P.2d 456 (Ariz., 1940) the Arizona Supreme Court held that where the Assignor (State of Arizona) had not been a party to a quiet title action its grantee or assignee was not bound by the quiet title action even though the grantee had been a party to the action in a different capacity.

. . . [I]f the state was not foreclosed by the action to quiet title, neither was its assignee or grantee. (P. 467)

Likewise, if Ivory and Company's interest against the bank was not foreclosed by the bankruptcy dismissal, then neither was its assignee (Mr. Bailey) even though he was a party to the bankruptcy complaint.

The Bank was sued in the first action primarily as a first position lien holder and as a lender. Mr. Bailey challenged the bank's right to be in first position, claiming that as a lender the bank had failed to properly distribute the construction loan funds to Bailey who had provided materials to the property. In the state court action, Mr. Bailey was granted judgment against the Trustee who happened to be the bank but could just as well have been a title company or an attorney. The different capacities of the bank in the two actions should be considered by the court.

Professor James Wm. Moore's Treatise on Federal Practice at Res Judicata Paragraph 0.411 [3.-2] Volume 1B Page 427 states as follows:

As we have seen, the practical view of parties for purposes of res judicata centers on the interest that is litigated rather than the names that appear in the pleadings . . . The capacities rule is but the other side of the coin; where the names are the same but the interests put into the litigation belong to others, res judicata follows the interest and not the name.

Since Mr. Bailey asked the bankruptcy court to order the bank as trustee to stay the Trustee's Sale, Respondent unfortunately cannot claim complete lack of identity of the parties, but the different capacities in which the bank serves relative to the claims in the two actions is at least illustrative of the differences in the transactional facts of the two actions.

(2) There must have been a final judgment on the merits of the prior case.

Rule 41(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, provides that an involuntary dismissal is a dismissal on the merits. The record indicates that the dismissal was in fact voluntary and therefore not with prejudice. Counsel for Mr. Bailey submitted his Affidavit to the court which provides in part as follows:

8. Judge Ralph R. Mabe granted a temporary restraining order on November 9, 1979, at 10:00 a.m. However, the order was not timely served on the defendant's trustee until after the trustee's sale had been accomplished. In connection with the issuance of the temporary order, the Court set a hearing date in this matter for November 13, 1979. Both the undersigned affiant and counsel for the defendant were present at the hearing.

9. At the hearing referred to above, the issues raised by the plaintiff in its complaint in the Bankruptcy Court were not tried, and the matter was not dismissed with prejudice. The matter was dismissed after discussion between counsel and the Court because the issue of whether the sale should be delayed and whether the plaintiff should be allowed to cure the loan with the defendant were moot. It was understood by the Judge and counsel, that the funds received at the trustee's sale did not exceed, by far, the amount of the secured claims on the property. The Judge stated that because of the secured claims on the subject property, and the amount of the proceeds at the Trust Deed Trustee's Sale, the bankruptcy trustee, John Green, would have no claim on those proceeds, and the Bankruptcy Court would not be interested in adjudicating the claims to those funds. Therefore, the bankruptcy Judge suggested that the Bankruptcy Court should not be involved in this aspect of this matter, i.e. the adjudication of priority in the funds received by the trustee, Edward M. Garrett, acting on behalf of the defendant.

This court should find that the plaintiff's undisputed agreement to the dismissal limited the res judicata effect of the dismissal to only those items specifically raised in the bankruptcy complaint.

(3) The prior adjudication must have involved the same issue or an issue that could or should have been raised therein.

The court below gave judgment to Mr. Bailey ordering the bank to distribute the excess proceeds of sale to plaintiff pursuant to

Utah Code Annotated §57-1-29. No claim for distribution of excess proceeds of sale was raised in the bankruptcy court complaint. In fact, no claim could have been made in the complaint since the sale had not yet taken place. On the contrary, the fervent intent of Bailey's complaint in bankruptcy court was to prevent the sale from taking place. It was only after the essence of his complaint had been mooted by sale of the property and after the bankruptcy court had indicated that it did not care to be involved in the dispute over the proceeds of the Trustee's Sale (R. 63, 64) that the state court action was brought.

It is clear that the state court cause was not actually brought in the earlier case. "Could or Should" the claim have been raised in the bankruptcy court? The could or should language of Utah and many other state cases is not very helpful. No court, including Utah's, has interpreted "should or could" to mean "was it possible to". Any permissible counterclaim, for instance, could be brought in an action by defendant, but only compulsory counterclaims are barred by res judicata if the defendant fails to raise them.

Arizona interprets "could or should" to mean "could have been brought based upon the points in the record." Vance v. Vance 601 P.2d 605 (Ariz. 1979). Kansas used a different test. "Could the claim have been litigated under the facts which gave rise to the cause of action?" Jay Hawk Equipment Company vs. Mentzer 379 P.2d 342 (Kan., 1973). Any specific Utah test has escaped Respondent's research. If this court has not adopted a specific test, Respondent respectfully submits that the Rule proposed in the restatement (second) and argued for by Professor Moore is the preferable rule.

The Restatement of the Law Second Judgments 2d  
Vol. 1 §24 provides as follows:

(1) When a valid and final judgment rendered in an action extinguishes the plaintiff's claim pursuant to the rules of merger or bar, the claim extinguished includes all rights of the plaintiff to remedies against the defendant with respect to all or any part of the transaction, or series of transactions, out of which the action arose.

(2) What factual grouping constitutes a "transaction" and what groupings constitute a "series", are to be determined pragmatically, giving weight to such considerations as whether the facts are related in time, space, origin or motivation, whether they form a convenient trial unit and whether their treatment as a unit conforms to the parties expectations or business understanding or usage.

The transactional facts of the two cases are disparate. The first cause dealt with allegations of a defective Trust Deed and wrongful pay out of construction loan funds to the damage of a materialman who supplied materials to the construction site. The complaint asked for damages as a result, for voiding of the first position Trust Deed and for injunction of Trustee's Sale or for reinstatement of the loan. The state court cause resulted in an order causing the Trustee on the Trust Deed to disperse excess proceeds of sale. No damages were awarded nor was the bank's first position Trust Deed invalidated. The transactions are separated in time, space and origin and could reasonably be expected from a business standpoint to be considered separate transactions. Defendant must argue that if a junior lien claimant unsuccessfully attacks a first position lender, that lien claimant automatically loses all position in the property and may not pursue excess proceeds at Trustee's Sale. The facts of this case require defendant to take this argument even further. Since Mr. Bailey's bankruptcy court complaint was based on a third and sixth position in the property where his state court

complaint was based on a second position in the property which was assigned to him, the bank would have the court rule that should a third position lien holder unsuccessfully challenge the rights of a first position lender that all junior lien holders lose all their rights to the property whether they are parties or not.

The bankruptcy court's order did not bar plaintiff's complaint in the state court.

POINT II: THE BANKRUPTCY COURT'S ORDER ON ITS FACE CLEARLY DOES NOT EXTEND THE JURISDICTION OF THE BANKRUPTCY COURT THROUGH TO THE PROCEEDS OF SALE

While it is true that 28 U.S.C. §1471 grants exclusive jurisdiction over the property of the bankrupt to the bankruptcy court. It is just as clear that the bankruptcy trustee may on his own motion or upon petition by other claimants, abandon jurisdiction of the property. 11 U.S.C. §554 provides in pertinent part as follows:

(a) After notice and a hearing, the Trustee may abandon any property of the estate that is burdensome to the estate or that is of inconsequential value to the estate.

(b) On request of a party in interest and after notice and a hearing, the court may order the Trustee to abandon any property of the estate that is burdensome to the estate and that is of inconsequential value to the estate.

\* \* \*

Though the banks complaint in reclamation to obtain abandonment of real property was an unorthodox if not incorrect procedure for a secured creditor, it nevertheless was effective and the bankruptcy court abandoned its jurisdiction as follows:

That the relief sought in the complaint by Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association is granted and said Association may proceed to Trustee's Sale on the real property described in the complaint herein pursuant to the laws of the state of Utah. (R. 40-41)

Once the bankruptcy court has abandoned property, it is irrevocable. In re Polumbo 271 F. Supp 640 (DC Va., 1967). Though the court clearly abandoned the property, the bank to obtain such a ruling, stipulated and agreed that should it obtain the property at the Trustee's Sale, it would then offer this property for sale in a commercially reasonable manner and pay the excess to the court. The second part of the Order of the Court provided as follows:

In the event that Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association should be the successful bidder at the Trustee's Sale and shall acquire title to part or all of the real property herein, free of other liens, then the property so acquired shall be offered for sale by the Association in a commercially reasonable manner and in the event that the sum in excess of that necessary to fully satisfy the note, Trust Deed, interest, costs and attorney's fees is realized upon the sale, such excess shall be paid over to the court for further disposition. (R. 40-41) (Emphasis added)

Though Deseret Federal acquired the property, the results of a commercially reasonable sale are not in evidence or issue in this action. It is clear that any amounts to be paid into bankruptcy court are amounts realized from a second sale, a commercially reasonable sale, not the Trustee's Sale.

The Third Judicial District Court was put into a position of having to interpret the meaning and import of a bankruptcy order. On its face and with the further clarification given by the affidavit of James R. Ivins, the court reasonably construed the order of the bankruptcy court to mean that the bankruptcy trustee had abandoned any claim to the proceeds of the Trustee's Sale and that the priority and distribution of the proceeds of the Trustee's Sale could be distributed as the state court directed pursuant U.C.A. 57-1-29. The lower court did not err in its interpretation that the bankruptcy court had abandoned its interest in the proceeds.

POINT III: DEFENDANT FAILED TO FOLLOW APPROPRIATE PROCEDURE FOR HAULTING THE ACTION IN STATE COURT

It was defendant's responsibility to get an Order from the bankruptcy court staying the proceeding and superceding the jurisdiction of the state court. The bank argues that the purpose and effect of the bankruptcy court orders have been thwarted by action in the state court. Substantially prior to trial, the bank brought a Motion for Summary Judgment. In its memorandum, the bank argued as follows:

It must be conceded that the bankruptcy court had full and complete jurisdiction of all matters relating to the said Lot 46 and acted thereon. That being the case, this court has no jurisdiction over the matters sought to be litigated by plaintiff. This jurisdiction continues over the property of the bankrupt until the bankruptcy court formally divests itself of jurisdiction by abandonment or in some other manner. (R. 19,20)

When the state court clearly rejected the bank's interpretation of the bankruptcy court rulings, the bank should have gone back to bankruptcy court to obtain an order clearly asserting the bankruptcy court's desire to maintain jurisdiction over the property. This would have been a relatively simple procedure and had that been the true intent of the bankruptcy court the trial and this appeal would have been avoided. Respondent submits that the bank should be estopped from asserting a contrary interpretation of the bankruptcy court's order.

CONCLUSION

The judgment by the court below was based upon the plaintiff's suit for an order directing the disposition of proceeds of the Trustee's Sale pursuant to §57-1-29 U.C.A. This issue was neither raised nor litigated in the bankruptcy court. The directed

distribution to Mr. Bailey was based on the rights of the Ivory second trust deed. The state action below arose only after the Bank as trustee conducted the sale while the bankruptcy court action was commenced prior to the trustee's sale and sought to prevent the trustee's sale and to adjudicate the validity of the first lien of the bank. Mr. Bailey's action in this matter was not, therefore, barred by res judicata. The lower court did not err in so holding nor did the court err in its findings that the bankruptcy court had abandoned the proceeds of the trustee's sale by its specific order. The judgment of the lower court should be affirmed.